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ANNEXURE 3 
 

Disclosures of details with respect to the remuneration of specified employees 

[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

Designation of the employee Chief Executive 

Officer 

Remuneration received 1,09,00,851 

Nature of employment, whether contractual or otherwise Permanent 

Qualifications and Experience of the employee BE-Mechanical 

33 years 

Date of commencement of employment 01-04-1999 

Age of such employee 55 years 

Last employment held by such employee before joining the 

company 

Godrej and Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 

(from 14-09-1988 to 31-03-

1999) 

Percentage of equity shares held by the employee in the 

company  

NIL 

Whether any such employee is a relative of any director or 

manager of the company and if so, name of such director or 

manager 

N.A. 

 

 

  



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED  
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GODREJ INFOTECH 
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, (hereinafter referred to as 
“Standalone Financial Statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)  in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its 
profits, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis of Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 29.B to the Standalone Financial Statements, whereby in addition to the 
existing demand letter from the Department of Telecommunication (DoT) amounting to Rs. 12,115 lakhs 
for the financial year 2005-06 to 2013-14 (except 207-08), during the year additional demand letters 
amounting to Rs. 4,278 Lakhs for the financial year 2007-08 and 2014-15 is received by the Company. 
DoT has considered as “Miscellaneous income” the Non – Telecom Revenue of the Company i.e. the 
revenue generated by the Company from its mainstream businesses of implementation, consultancy and 
support services of ERP software including trading of software licenses as part of Adjusted Gross Revenue 
(AGR).  The Company has contested the demands before DoT and requested for their withdrawal, as in the 
opinion of the management the same are not payable in terms of its ISP License agreements.  
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Other Information 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, namely Directors’ Report including annexures to 
Directors’ Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 



 
Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the  Act with 
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance (including Other Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of Standalone Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 



 
(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  
 

(d)  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 
(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of the reasonably knowledgeable users of the 
Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, 
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.  
 
 



 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 

Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.  
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Company is disqualified as on March 31, 
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B".  
 

g) According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration and hence, the provisions of 
Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.  
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 
 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations to be disclosed in its Standalone Financial 

Statements except as referred to Note 29.B of the Standalone Financial Statements.  
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts during the year ended March 31, 2021, for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. Derivative contracts are appropriately dealt with in the 
books of account. 

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021. 
 

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration Number: 104607W/W100166 
 
 
 
 
 
FARHAD M. BHESANIA 
PARTNER 
Membership Number: 127355 
UDIN: 21127355AAAAEU6751 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 25, 2021 
  

FARHAD 
MARZBAN 
BHESANIA

Digitally signed by 
FARHAD MARZBAN 
BHESANIA 
Date: 2021.05.25 
18:39:32 +05'30'



 
ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our 
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2021.  
 
Statement on Matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016: 
 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative    
     details and situation of fixed assets. 
 
(b) As explained to us, the Company has a program for physical verification of fixed assets at periodic 

intervals. In our opinion, the period of verification is reasonable having regards to size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. However, the management was unable to conduct the planned physical 
verification of fixed assets during the year due to nationwide lockdown declared by the Government 
time to time and it was impracticable to perform the verification procedures on account of closure of 
the offices. Hence, our comment on the discrepancies, if any, noticed during the physical verification of 
fixed assets and whether the same has been properly dealt with in the books of account does not arise. 

 
(c) The Company does not have immovable property and hence the provisions of sub clause (c) of 

paragraph 3(i) of the Order are not applicable. 
   

ii. The Company does not have any inventory and accordingly the provisions of paragraph 3(ii) of the Order 
are not applicable.  
 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, 
the provisions of sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable. 
 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by 
us, the Company has not advanced any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantee or 
security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any Deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and 
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed 
thereunder are not applicable. 
 

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records under sub 
section (1) of section 148 of the Act is not applicable to the Company under the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014.  

 
vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the 

Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods & Services Tax and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no arrears of 
outstanding statutory dues in respect of above as on the last day of the financial year for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 



 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, there are no 

material dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise and Value added 
tax outstanding on account of any dispute. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the records the 
Company does not have any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks, government or any 
dues to debenture holders.  
 

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instrument). Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable. 
 

x. During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, and according 
to the information and explanation given to us and representations made by the Management, no material 
fraud by or on the Company by its officers and employees, has been noticed or reported during the year. 
 

xi. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration and hence, the provisions 
of paragraph 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable. 
 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the 
Order are not applicable. 
 

xiii. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, 
where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 
 

xiv. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
xv. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of 

the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons 
connected with him. Hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.  
 

xvi. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under (xvi) of the Order is 
not applicable. 
 
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration No. 104607W/W100166 
 
 
 
FARHAD M. BHESANIA 
PARTNER 
Membership Number 127355 
UDIN: 21127355AAAAEU6751 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 25, 2021 
 

FARHAD 
MARZBAN 
BHESANIA

Digitally signed by 
FARHAD MARZBAN 
BHESANIA 
Date: 2021.05.25 18:40:45 
+05'30'



 
 
ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
Referred to in Para 2(f) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent 
Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2021. 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements of GODREJ 
INFOTECH LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial 
Statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166 
 
 
 
 
FARHAD M. BHESANIA 
PARTNER 
Membership Number 127355 
UDIN: 21127355AAAAEU6751 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 25, 2021  

 

FARHAD 
MARZBAN 
BHESANIA

Digitally signed by 
FARHAD MARZBAN 
BHESANIA 
Date: 2021.05.25 
18:42:20 +05'30'



(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at As at 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 92.39                                86.03                                   
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 1.00                                  22.04                                   
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Investments in Subsidiaries 3 167.08                              167.08                                 
(ii) Loans 4 13.20                                18.71                                   

(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 93.25                                120.51                                 
(e) Income Tax Assets (Net) 6 699.97                              517.00                                 
(f) Other Non - Current Assets 7 108.17                              108.38                                 
Total Non-current Assets 1,175.06                           1,039.75                              

2. Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 8 2,406.47                           2,321.30                              
(ii) Trade Receivables 9 1,705.82                           2,648.23                              

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 2,652.39                           1,473.75                              
(iv) Loans 11 3.85                                  3.85                                     
(v) Others 12 1,540.27                           169.69                                 

(b) Other Current Assets 13 394.30                              197.71                                 
Total Current Assets 8,703.10                           6,814.53                              

TOTAL ASSETS 9,878.16                           7,854.28                              

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 9.70                                  9.70                                     
(b) Other Equity 15 5,118.18                           4,248.41                              

TOTAL EQUITY 5,127.88                           4,258.11                              

LIABILITIES
1. Non Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions 16 289.26                              232.21                                 
Total Non Current Liabilities 289.26                              232.21                                 

2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables 17
18.29                                12.85                                   

484.24                              359.53                                 
(ii) Others 18 2,827.65                           2,032.10                              

(b) Other current liabilities 19 1,079.82                           915.52                                 
(c) Provisions 20 51.02                                43.96                                   
Total Current Liabilities 4,461.02                           3,363.96                              

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,878.16                           7,854.28                              

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Date:  May 25, 2021

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

I INCOME
1. Revenue from Operations 21 12,437.15                   12,290.02                         
2. Other Income 22 69.27                          183.69                              

TOTAL INCOME 12,506.42                   12,473.71                         

II EXPENSES
1. Cost of Sales/ Services 23 1,461.64                     1,082.17                           
2. Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade -                             1.45                                  
3. Employee Benefits Expense 24 8,578.22                     8,199.26                           
4. Finance Cost 25 -                             0.97                                  
5. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2 21.56                          22.39                                
6. Other Expenses 26 1,278.44                     1,782.77                           

TOTAL EXPENSES 11,339.86                   11,089.01                         

III PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,166.56                     1,384.70                           

IV TAX EXPENSE
Current Tax 6(b) 308.77                        377.31                              
Deferred Tax 6(b) (7.03)                          (1.95)                                 
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 301.74                        375.36                              

V PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 864.82                        1,009.34                           

VI OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 136.24                        (245.34)                             
2. Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss (34.29)                        (43.75)                               

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 101.95                        (289.09)                             

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 966.77                        720.25                              

VII EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Basic & Diluted 27 8,916                          10,406                              

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Date:  May 25, 2021

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 1,166.56                         1,384.70                           
Adjustments for : -                                    
   Depreciation and amortisation expense 21.56                             22.39                                
   Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.55                               (1.14)                                 
   Provision for Doubtful Debts 56.24                             13.56                                

Interest on Other financial assets carried at amortised cost (0.09)                              0.11                                  
   Dividend Earned on Investments -                                 (39.99)                               
   Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds (17.33)                            (2.18)                                 
   Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL (38.82)                            (58.36)                               
   Interest on Income Tax Refund (0.09)                              (28.81)                               
   Foreign Exchange Loss/(Gain) (Unrealised) 40.50                             (41.66)                               
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,230.08                         1,248.62                           
Adjustments for :
   Trade Receivables 845.67                           607.79                              
   Other Assets/ Receivables (1,561.35)                       310.21                              
  Trade payable and Other liabilities 1,290.33                         271.02                              
  Cash Generated from Operations/ (used in operations) 1,804.73                         2,437.64                           
  Direct Taxes Paid (Incl. Tax Deducted at Source) Net of Refund (491.65)                          (766.34)                             
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 1,313.08                         1,671.30                           

B.  Cash Flow From Investing Activities
  Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (7.36)                              (33.22)                               
  Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.06)                              1.14                                  
  Dividend income -                                 39.99                                

 Sale/(Purchase) of Mutual funds (Net) (29.02)                            (934.90)                             
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (37.44)                            (926.99)                             

C.  Cash Flow From Financing Activities
  Dividend Paid (97.00)                            (99.82)                               
  Dividend Distribution Tax -                                 (17.12)                               
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (97.00)                            (116.94)                             

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,178.64                         627.37                              

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,473.75                         846.38                              
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,652.39                         1,473.75                           
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,178.64                         627.37                               

Note: 

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Date:  May 25, 2021

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

The above Statement of Cash Flow includes INR 33.29 lakhs (Previous Year 2020: INR 27.65 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) activities (Refer Note 26.3).
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A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

No. of Shares Amount in lakhs No. of Shares Amount in lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 9,700                      9.70                        9,700                     9.70                       
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -                          -                         -                        -                        
Balance at the end of the reporting year 9,700                      9.70                        9,700                     9.70                       

B. Other Equity
(Amount in Lakhs)

 Securities 
Premium 

 General Reserve  Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at April 01, 2019 190.00                    -                         3,455.10                3,645.10                
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 

Profit for the Year -                          -                         1,009.34                1,009.34                
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plan -                          -                         (289.09)                 (289.09)                 

Total 190.00                    -                         4,175.35                4,365.35                
Contributions and Distributions

Dividend on Equity Shares -                          -                         (99.82)                   (99.82)                   
Dividend Distribution Tax -                          -                         (17.12)                   (17.12)                   

Balance as at March 31, 2020 190.00                    -                         4,058.41                4,248.41                
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit for the Year -                          -                         864.82                   864.82                   
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plan -                          -                         101.95                   101.95                   

Total 190.00                    -                         5,025.18                5,215.18                
Equity Dividend -                          -                         (97.00)                   (97.00)                   

Balance as at March 31, 2021 190.00                    -                         4,928.18                5,118.18                

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR  
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Date:  May 25, 2021

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars
Reserves & Surplus

Total Equity

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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A.  Company overview

B. Basis of preparation of financial statements

a.

b.

c.

d.  Use of Estimates, Judgements & Assumptions

(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

e. Impact of Covid-19 pendamic

f. Code on Social Security, 2020

g. Recent pronouncement

Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 comprises of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to Financial Statements. The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 are approved by the Board
of Directors on May 25, 2021

Current versus non-current classification:
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee, which is the functional currency of the Company. All financial information has been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise indicated.

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
Recognition of deferred tax assets.
Fair value of financial instruments.
Applicable discount rate.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of
Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active
consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements
in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

In March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III
of Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 2021. The Company is evaluating the effect of the amendments on its financial statements. 

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial statements, including but not limited
to liquidity and going concern assumption and carrying amount of financial and non-financial assets. In developing the assumptions, relating to the possible future uncertainties in
the global economic condition because of this pandemic, the Company has at the date of approval of these financial statements, used internal and external sources of information
including credit reports and related information and economic forecasts and expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the
Company's financial statements may differ from the estimates as at the date of approval of the financial statement. 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Godrej Infotech Limited ('the Company') is a leading Company provider in consulting, technology, outsourcing and next-generation services. Along with its subsidiaries, the
Company provides Business IT services; Consulting and systems integration & implementation, and support services; Products, business platforms and solutions to accelerate
intellectual property-led innovation; and offerings in the areas of Analytics, Cloud, and Digital Transformation.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400079. 

Basis of Measurement
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities, including financial instruments which have been measured at fair value as described below and defined benefit plans which have been measured on the basis of
actuarial valuation as required by relevant Ind AS.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. Information about critical judgments in applying accounting
policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, are included in the following notes: 



h. Measurement of fair values

C. Critical Accounting Estimates
a.  Revenue recognition

b.  Income taxes

D. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Property, Plant & Equipment

(i)

-
-

(ii) Depreciation

(iii)

b.

c.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the financial instruments to be measured at fair values.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The management
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then
the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusions that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Recognition and Measurement

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost net of tax credit availed less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises:

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the
reporting date.

The Company's major tax jurisdictions are in India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on
pro rata basis. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on internal technical evaluation. 

Leasehold land is amortised equally over the period of lease. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Disposal or Retirement
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised either on disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from disposal of 
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the year of occurrence.

Impairment of non-financial assets

its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

When significant parts of Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced, the Company derecognises the replaced part and recognises the new part with its own
associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly.

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of property, plant and equipment less its estimated residual value. 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). 

If the recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of an asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment, if any, and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the
difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



d. Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

I

II

-
-
-

III

IV

V

VI

VII Derecognition

-
-

VIII Impairment of financial assets

-
- Trade receivables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. 

Subsequent measurement and classification

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment, if any. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI).

Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified into three categories: 
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets   

Financial assets at amortised cost

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company applies ‘Simplified Approach’ for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit exposure:
Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, deposits and bank balance

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected
credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

Financial asset at Fair Value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value,
including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets as Equity Investments
All equity instruments other than investment in subsidiaries are initially measured at fair value; the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same 
either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A fair value change on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in
OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as
‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:



(ii) Financial Liabilities

I Classification

II

III Loans and borrowings

IV Derecognition

(iii)

e. Cash and cash equivalent

f.
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

g. Revenue recognition 

(i) Sale of software products / licenses

(ii) Sale of service – implementation (Fixed Price contracts)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent Assets if any, are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The Company derives revenues mainly from software development and related services and from trading of third party licenses. 

Revenue from the sale of third party software products / licenses which do not require any significant modification is recognised upon delivery i.e. “point in time”, which is when
the absolute right to use passes to the customer and the Company does not have any material remaining service obligations.

Revenue from third party software implementation contracts which does not require any significant customisation, which are generally time bound fixed price contracts, is
recognised over the life of the contract using the percentage-of-completion method, with the contract milestone determining the degree of completion. 

Revenue in excess of billings i.e. the Company’s right to consideration in exchange of products or services that the Company has transferred to a customer is recognised as contract
asset in the balance sheet;

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Assets

To the extent billings are in excess of revenue recognised i.e. there is obligation on the Company to transfer products or services to a customer, the excess is reported as unearned
i.e. contract liability in the balance sheet.

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or cost expended have been used
to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.



(iii) Sale of service – consultancy (Time & Material)
Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis is recognised as services are rendered and as related costs are incurred.

(iv) After sale service – consultancy (Time & Material)
Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the contract.

(v) Commission

(vi) Other income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

h.  Employee Benefits
(i)

(ii) Post-employment benefits:
 Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

(iii) Other long-term employee benefits

i. Borrowing Cost

j. Foreign currency transactions / translations

Short term employee benefits (payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service)
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The Company’s contributions paid/payable to Managerial
Superannuation Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, Employees’ Pension Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the relevant approved schemes and/or
statutes, and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. There are no further obligations
other than the contributions payable to the approved trusts/appropriate authorities.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, 
excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCI. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure 
the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit
payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

When the Company as an agent satisfies a performance obligation, the Company recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Gains or losses, resulting from the settlement (actual realization /payment) of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary current assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into rupees at the year-end exchange rates, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items like fixed assets, inventories and investments in equity shares, which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. The Company’s forward exchange contracts are not held for trading or
speculation; the discount or premium arising from the difference between the forward rate and the spot rate at the inception of such a contract is amortized as income or expense
over the period of the contract. Any profit or loss arising from such contracts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
However, the Rules of the Company's Provident Fund (PF) administered by an approved Trust, require that if the Board of Trustees is unable to pay interest at the rate declared for
the Employees’ Provident Fund by the Government under para 60 of the Employees’ Provident Fund Scheme, 1952, for the reason that the return on investment is less or for any
other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by the Company.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Other employee benefits
include leave encashment/long-term compensated absences schemes.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate
applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset are
capitalized upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready to its intended use or sale.



k. Leases  

(i) The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset. 
(ii)

l.

(i)

I
II

(ii)

I
II

III

(a)
(b)

 
m. Earnings Per Share

n. Dividend

o. Segment Reporting

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. Leases of assets (other than short term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is
of low value) are recognised if the lease contract conveys the right to the Company to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A
contract conveys the right to control the used of an identified asset for a period of time, if throughout the period of lease, the Company has both of the following:

The right to direct the use of the identified asset. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
 has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

At the date of commencement of lease, the Company recognises a Right-Of-Use (“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee 
except for leases for a term of twelve months  or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For short term leases and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease 
payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease
term. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments or if Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in OCI.
Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

The Company recognises a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the reporting period, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no
longer at the discretion of the Company on or before the end of the reporting period. As per Corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) which is a single business segment in

IT products and services. The CODM, being the Chief Executive Officer assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.
Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of on temporary differences which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period are not recognised. Deferred tax assets / liabilities in
respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period are recognised. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax losses and
tax depreciation are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence of their realisation and on other items when there is reasonable
certainty of realisation. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at the year-end based on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the
balance sheet date.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit Entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period in which such credit can be carried forward for set-off. The carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement is reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after taxes attributable to equity shareholders for the year, with the weighted number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

The Finance Act 2020 has abolished the Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) and has shifted the tax liability on dividends to the shareholders. Accordingly, the Company distributes 
the dividend after deducting the taxes at applicable rates.
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

3 Investments in Subsidiaries
Investment in Equity Shares (Unquoted, At Cost)

(a)
110.74                 110.74                 

(b)
49.44                   49.44                   

(c)
6.90                     6.90                     

167.08                 167.08                 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 167.08                 167.08                 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments -                       -                       

4 Loans

Security Deposits 13.20                   18.71                   
13.20                   18.71                   

5 Deferred Tax Asset and Tax Expense
(a) Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

(i) Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2021 
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI Net

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 3.66                   6.12                  -                       9.78                     
Employee Benefits 70.90                 (3.54)                 (34.29)                  33.07                   
Fair valuation of financial instruments -                     (9.71)                 -                       (9.71)                    
Provision for Doubtful Debts 45.95                 14.16                -                       60.11                   
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 120.51              7.03                  (34.29)                  93.25                   

(ii) Particulars
 As at March 31, 

2020 
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI  Net 

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 9.49                  (5.83)                 -                       3.66                     
Employee Benefits 103.84              10.81                (43.75)                  70.90                   
Provision for Doubtful Debts 48.98                (3.03)                 -                       45.95                   
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 162.31              1.95                  (43.75)                  120.51                 

(b) Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current Tax
In respect of Current Year 350.34                 311.48                 
In respect of Prior Year (41.57)                  65.83                   

308.77                 377.31                 
Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of Tax on Temporary differences (7.03)                    (1.95)                    

(7.03)                    (1.95)                    
Tax Expense for the year 301.74                 375.36                 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(Amount in Lakhs)

55,350 Fully Paid Equity Shares of EURO 1 each in LVD Godrej Infotech NV (P.Y.: 55,350 Fully Paid Equity 
Shares of EURO 1 each)
1,00,000 Fully Paid Equity Shares of SGD 1 each in Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte Ltd. (P.Y.: 1,00,000 Fully 
Paid Equity Shares of SGD 1 each)
10,00,000 Fully Paid Equity Shares of USD 0.01 each in Godrej Infotech Americas Inc. (P.Y.: 10,00,000 Fully 
Paid Equity Shares of USD 0.01 each)

Unsecured, Considered Good

 Net Balance as 
at April 01, 

2020 

Movement during the year

 Net Balance as 
at April 01, 

2019 

Movement during the year



(c) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
 Before Tax 136.24                 (245.34)                
 Tax (Expense) Benefit (34.29)                  (43.75)                  
 Net of Tax 101.95                 (289.09)                

(d) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit Before Tax 1,166.56              1,384.70              
Tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected Income Tax Expense 293.60                 348.50                 
Tax effect of:
Prior period tax adjustments (41.57)                  65.83                   
Allowable Deductions (1.58)                    -                       
Difference in tax rate 4.36                     15.00                   
Property, Plant and Equipment (6.12)                    5.83                     
Employee Benefits 3.54                     (10.81)                  
Income Exempt from tax -                       (10.06)                  
Non-Deductible expenses 56.29                   (44.73)                  
Provision for Doubtful Debts (14.16)                  3.03                     
Impact of Fair Value Adjustments 7.37                     2.77                     
Tax expense recognised 301.73                 375.36                 

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

6 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net) 699.97                 517.00                 

699.97                 517.00                 

7 Other non - current assets
a) Prepaid Expenses - Non Current Asset 0.80                     1.01                     
b) Balance with Government Authorities 107.37                 107.37                 

108.17                 108.38                 

8 Investments
Unquoted, carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Investments in Mutual funds

(a) 2,45,406.266 units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund-Regular-Growth 808.15                 -                       
(b) 2,60,585 units of ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund-Reg-Growth 789.69                 -                       
(c) 16,180.936 units of Nippon India Liquid Fund - Growth 808.63                 -                       
(d) 30,757.363 units of Aditya Birla Overnight fund Reg-Growth -                       331.63                 
(e) 31,065.540 units of DSP Overnight Fund –Regular Plan-Growth -                       331.58                 
(f) 3,08,118.462 units of ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund-Reg-Growth -                       331.54                 
(g) 31,114.862 units of Kotak Overnight Fund-Regular-Growth -                       331.44                 
(h) 3,10,219.316 units of Nippon India Overnight Fund - Growth -                       332.09                 
(i) 10,284.944 units of SBI overnight Fund-Regular-Growth -                       331.64                 
(j) 12,216.758 units of UTI overnight Fund- Reg - Gr -                       331.38                 

2,406.47              2,321.30              
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments and Market Value thereof 2,406.47              2,321.30              
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments -                       -                       

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021



As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

9 Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Good (Refer Note 9.4) 1,705.82              2,648.23              
Unsecured, Credit Impaired 238.84                 182.60                 
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Receivables (238.84)                (182.60)                

1,705.82              2,648.23              

9.1

9.2

9.3
Balance as at Beginning of the Year 182.60                 168.21                 
Add: Created during the Year 104.72                 73.71                   
Less: Amount Realised during the Year 48.48                   59.32                   
Balance as at end of the Year 238.84                 182.60                 

9.4

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a)  Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 2,652.30              1,473.70              
b)  Cash on Hand 0.09                     0.05                     

2,652.39              1,473.75              

11 Loans
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits - Current 3.85                     3.85                     

3.85                     3.85                     

12 Other Current Financial Assets
Contract Asset
Unbilled Revenue 1,540.27              169.69                 

1,540.27              169.69                 

13 Other Current Assets
(a) Prepaid Expenses - Current Asset 65.55                   54.00                   
(b) Advance Payment to Suppliers & Others 103.48                 78.31                   
(c) Balance with Government Authorities - Current 225.23                 57.69                   
(d) Others 0.04                     7.71                     

394.30                 197.71                 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Trade receivables includes receivables from related parties of Rs.1,088.12 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.1,804.14 lakhs)

No trade or other receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or
other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively, in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The Company has used practical expedient by computing expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables by taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss is based on ageing of the days the receivables are due and the
expected credit loss rate. The Company has computed credit loss allowances based on Expected Credit Loss Model, which excludes transactions with
subsidiaries. The Company is still pursuing the recovery of the receivables for which allowance is made for doubtful debts.

The movement in allowance for doubtful receivables is as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)



As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

14 Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised:

1,000.00              1,000.00              

(b)  Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up :

9.70                     9.70                     
9.70                     9.70                     

(c) Reconciliation of number of Shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 9,700                9.70                   9,700                   9.70                     
Add: Addition during the year -                    -                     -                       -                       
Outstanding at the end of the Year 9,700                9.70                   9,700                   9.70                     

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

(e) Shareholding Information

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (Holding Company) 5,050                   5,050                   

(f) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company are given below :

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,050                52.06% 5,050                   52.06%
RKN Enterprises 930                   9.59% 930                      9.59%

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

15 Other Equity
(a) Securities Premium

Securities Premium - Opening Balance 190.00                 190.00                 
190.00                 190.00                 

(b) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 4,058.41              3,455.10              
Profit for the year 864.82                 1,009.34              
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plan 101.95                 (289.09)                
Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax (97.00)                  (116.94)                
Closing Balance 4,928.18              4,058.41              

5,118.18              4,248.41              
15.1 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(a) Securities Premium

(b) Retained Earnings

(Amount in Lakhs)

10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (Previous year 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each) 

 9,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up (Previous year  9,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully 
paid up)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Retained earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company till date, less dividend to the shareholders 

The securities premium account has been created to record the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(No. of Shares)

The Company has only one class of shares having par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

Equity Shares held by

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(Amount in Lakhs)



As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

16 Non Current Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Unavailed Leave - Non Current 289.26                 232.21                 

289.26                 232.21                 

17 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
Payables for Goods & Services

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 18.29                   12.85                   
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 484.24                 359.53                 

502.53                 372.38                 

17.1  For amounts due to the related parties - Refer Note No. 30.
17.2  

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Dues remaining unpaid 19.72                   12.85                   
Principal 19.72                   11.88                   
Interest -                       0.97                     

(b) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act -                       -                       
(c) Amount of payments made to supplier beyond the appointed day -                       -                       
(d) 

-                       -                       
(e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid -                       0.97                     
(f) 

-                       -                       
(g) Balance as at the year end 19.72                   12.85                   

17.3

18 Other Current Financial Liabilities
(a) Employee Benefit Payable 1,772.17              1,562.79              
(b) Derivative Liability 0.24                     9.36                     
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 1,055.24              459.95                 

(Other Financial liabilities include other payables and accrued expenses)
2,827.65              2,032.10              

19 Other Current Liabilities
(a) Advance from customers 258.00                 192.47                 
(b) Income Received in Advance 354.78                 426.93                 
(c) Statutory Liabilities 467.04                 296.12                 

1,079.82              915.52                 

20 Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Unavailed Leave - Current 51.02                   43.96                   

51.02                   43.96                   

Micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have been identified by
the Company on the basis of the information available with the Company and the auditors have relied on the same. Trade Payables include total
outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises amounting to Rs. 18.29 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.12.85 lakhs). The disclosures pursuant to
MSMED Act based on the books of account are as under:

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond the appointed day during 
the year without adding interest specified under MSMED Act.

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years for the purpose of disallowance under 
section 23 of the Act.

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investors Education and Protection Fund in accordance with Section 125 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as at the year end

(Amount in Lakhs)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021



For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

21 Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 696.28                        1,043.64                     
(b) Sale of Services 11,629.82                   11,139.21                   
(c) Other Operating Revenues:

Commission 111.05                        107.17                        
Total Revenue from Operations 12,437.15                   12,290.02                   

22 Other Income
(a) Interest Income

(i) Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.09                            28.81                          
(ii) Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 0.61                            1.65                            

0.70                            30.46                          
(b) Other Non Operating Income

(i) Dividend earned on Investments in Mutual Funds -                              39.99                          
(ii) Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds 17.33                          2.18                            

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL 38.82                          58.36                          
(iv) Profit on sale of assets 1.55                            1.14                            
(v) Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions -                              62.99                          

(vi) (Loss) /Gain on derivative contracts 9.12                            (14.35)                         
(vii) Miscellaneous Income 1.75                            2.92                            

68.57                          153.23                        
Total Other Income 69.27                          183.69                        

23 Cost of Sales/ Service
(a) Purchase of Product & Licenses 529.50                        810.43                        
(b) Purchase of Services 932.14                        271.74                        

Total Cost of Sales/ Service 1,461.64                     1,082.17                     

24 Employee Benefits Expense
(a) Salaries and Allowances 7,951.51                     7,628.32                     
(b) Contribution to Provident and other  Funds 376.15                        362.77                        
(c) Contribution to Gratuity 157.40                        108.43                        
(d) Staff Welfare Expenses 93.16                          99.74                          

Total Employee Benefits Expense 8,578.22                     8,199.26                     

24.1 Details of Employee Benefit Plan
(a) Defined Contribution Plan:

Amount contributed by the Company to the Employees' Provident Fund
recognised as an expense and included under Employee Benefit Expense 294.60                        281.59                        

(b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity:
Contribution to Gratuity Fund

(i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year 1,309.56                     942.45                        
Interest Cost 75.43                          65.59                          
Current Service Cost 137.03                        91.18                          
Benefit Paid from the Fund (49.37)                         (58.57)                         
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions 31.32                          -                              
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (21.17)                         218.21                        
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (105.15)                       50.70                          
Liability at the end of the year 1,377.65                     1,309.56                     

(ii) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Liability at the end of the year (1,377.65)                    (1,309.56)                    
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,356.49                     955.79                        
Difference (21.16)                         (353.77)                       
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (21.16)                         (353.77)                       

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(Amount in Lakhs)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on death or on separation/ termination in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the
Company’s policy whichever is beneficial to the employees.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.



For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(iii) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Service cost 137.03                        91.18                          
Interest cost 75.42                          65.60                          
Expected return on plan assets (55.05)                         (48.35)                         
Total Expense recognised in the  Statement of Profit and Loss 157.40                        108.43                        

(iv) Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (95.00)                         268.91                        
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (41.24)                         (23.57)                         
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period recognised in OCI (136.24)                       245.34                        

(v)

Particulars
Discount Rate       
Salary escalation rate                                  
Attrition Rate                                              

Mortality Rate During Employment

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars
 Increase  Decrease   Increase  Decrease  

Discount Rate (1% movement)                 (65.87)                   73.38                          (61.98)                            68.83 
Salary escalation rate (1% movement)                   66.77                 (61.50)                            62.45                          (57.71)
Attrition Rate (1% movement)                 (29.57)                   32.80                          (28.10)                            31.09 

(vii)

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund For the year ended For the year ended
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the Reporting Date
1st Following Year                          173.46                          160.26 
2nd Following Year                          151.32                          157.76 
3rd Following Year                          196.99                          152.10 
4th Following Year                          224.83                          180.34 
5th Following Year                          140.98                          199.16 
Sum of Years 6 to 10                          501.00                          481.60 

(c) Other Long Term Employment Benefits

(i) Provisions in Balance Sheet:
Particulars
Short term 51.02                           43.96                           
Long Term 289.26                         232.21                         
Total Provisions in Balance Sheet 340.28                         276.17                         

(ii) Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Expenses 81.99                          90.13                          
Total Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 81.99                          90.13                          

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The Principal assumptions used in determining the present value of defined benefit obligation for the Company's plan are given below:

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 
6.06% 5.76%

(Amount in Lakhs)

15.00% 15.00%
17.00% 18.00%

 Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 

 Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis on Defined Benefit Obligation for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021  is shown below:
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on different count. This only signifies
the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis. 

The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity were as follows:
(Amount in Lakhs)

The leave encashment benefit is payable to all the eligible employees of the Company at the rate of daily salary as per current accumulation of leave days.
The Privilege leave encashment liability and amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss determined on actuarial valuation using basis projected unit credit
method are as under:.



For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

25 Finance Costs
Interest on Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -                              0.97                            
Total Finance Costs -                              0.97                            

26 Other Expenses
(a) Establishment Expenses and Other Expenses (Refer Note 26.1) 59.52                          248.76                        
(b) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 105.10                        516.64                        
(c) Legal & Professional Expenses 405.12                        400.89                        
(d) Software Expenses 3.53                            2.18                            
(e) Communication Expenses 23.42                          32.77                          
(f) Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note 26.2) 21.10                          18.23                          
(g) Provision for doubtful debts 56.24                          13.56                          
(h) Repairs & Maintenance - Others 8.68                            22.84                          
(i) Commission Expenses 140.85                        233.01                        
(j) Bank Charges 13.23                          16.36                          
(k) Insurance 6.12                            3.82                            
(l) Director's Sitting Fees 10.75                          7.75                            

(m) Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 26.3) 33.29                          27.65                          
(n) Rent (Refer Note 26.4) 376.96                        238.11                        
(o) Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions 14.43                          -                              
(p) General Expenses 0.10                            0.20                            

Total Other Expenses 1,278.44                     1,782.77                     

26.1
(36.09)                         83.47                          

26.2 Auditor's Remuneration
(a) Audit Fees 11.00                          9.50                            
(b) Tax Audit Fees 2.50                            2.00                            
(c) Certification 2.95                            4.17                            
(d) Reimbursement of Expenses -                              0.11                            
(e) Taxation Matters 4.65                            2.45                            

Total Auditor's Remuneration 21.10                          18.23                          

26.3 Corporate Social Responsibility

(a)
(b) Amount spent during the year on:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount spent in cash Total Amount

Year ending March 31, 2021
(i) Construction / Acquisition of any asset -                              -                              

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 33.29                          33.29                          
Year ending March 31, 2020

(i) Construction / Acquisition of any asset 12.84                          12.84                          
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 14.81                          14.81                          

26.4 Rent

27 Earnings Per Share
(a) Profit after Taxes attributable to Equity Shareholders 864.82                        1,009.34                     
(b) Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each Issued and Outstanding:

   (i) At the end of the Year 9,700                          9,700                          
  (ii) Weighted Average number of Shares Outstanding during the Year 9,700                          9,700                          

(c) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (a/b) 8,916                          10,406                        

Establishment Expenses include the Company’s share of various expenses, incurred by the Holding Company, Godrej & 
Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd., for use of common facilities, as reduced by the recoveries from the employees. 

The Company has spent INR 33.29 lakhs during the financial year (Previous Year March 31, 2020: INR 27.65 lakhs) as per the provisions of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof, towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities.

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year - INR 32.41 lakhs (Previous Year March 31, 2020: INR 27.57 lakhs)

Expense relating to short-term leases amounts to Rs. 65.42 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 86.96 lakhs) and leases of low value assets amounts to 311.54 lakhs (Previous year 
Rs. 149.23 lakhs). Commitment in relation to these contracts amounts to Rs. 97.24 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 181.49 lakhs)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(Amount in Lakhs)



28 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

(a) Accounting classification and fair values

(Amount in Lakhs)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Loans - Security Deposits -                     -                     13.20                    13.20                 -                  -                  -          -                   

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 2,406.47             -                     -                       2,406.47            2,406.47         -                  -          2,406.47          
Trade Receivables -                     -                     1,705.82               1,705.82            -                  -                  -          -                   
Cash and Cash Equivalents -                     -                     2,652.39               2,652.39            -                  -                  -          -                   
Loans -                     -                     3.85                      3.85                   -                  -                  -          -                   
Others -                     -                     1,540.27               1,540.27            -                  -                  -          -                   

2,406.47             -                     5,915.53               8,322.00            2,406.47         -                  -          2,406.47          
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables -                     -                     502.53                  502.53               -                  -                  -          -                   
Derivative Liability 0.24                    -                     -                       0.24                   -                  0.24                 -          0.24                 
Other Current Financial Liabilities -                     -                     2,827.40               2,827.40            -                  -                  -          -                   

0.24                    -                     3,329.93               3,330.17            -                  0.24                 -          0.24                 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Loans - Security Deposits -                     -                     18.71                    18.71                 -                  -                  -          -                   

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 2,321.30             -                     -                       2,321.30            2,321.30         -                  -          2,321.30          
Trade Receivables -                     -                     2,648.23               2,648.23            -                  -                  -          -                   
Cash and Cash Equivalents -                     -                     1,473.75               1,473.75            -                  -                  -          -                   
Others -                     -                     173.54                  173.54               -                  -                  -          -                   

2,321.30             -                     4,314.23               6,635.53            2,321.30         -                  -          2,321.30          
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables -                     -                     372.38                  372.38               -                  -                  -          -                   
Derivative Liability 9.36                    -                     -                       9.36                   -                  9.36                 -          9.36                 
Other Current Financial Liabilities -                     -                     2,022.74               2,022.74            -                  -                  -          -                   

9.36                    -                     2,395.12               2,404.48            -                  9.36                 -          9.36                 
 FVTPL - Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
 FVOCI - Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

(b) Fair value hierarchy    

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in an active markets. 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(c) Measurement of Fair Value

   (i) 

  (ii) 

  (iii) 

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying amount Fair value

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (a) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying amount Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent in all the years. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of mutual funds. Net asset value represents the price at which the
issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. 

The Management assesses that fair values of Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents, Loans, Trade Payables, Other current liabilities and Other financial liabilities (current),
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the
Company does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.



(d) Risk Management Framework

   (i) Credit Risk

Exposure to credit risk:

Debtor's Ageing
Particulars
more than 1 year
others

  (ii) Liquidity Risk

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years and above Total Carrying 

amount
As at March 31, 2021
Non interest bearing (Trade payable, 
deposits etc.)
Trade Payables 502.53                -                     -                       502.53               502.53            
Others 2,827.65             -                     -                       2,827.65            2,827.65         
As at March 31, 2020
Non interest bearing (Trade payable, 
deposits etc.)
Trade Payables 372.38                -                     -                       372.38               372.38            
Others 2,032.10             -                     -                       2,032.10            2,032.10         

  (iii) Market Risk

Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Change in Net Asset Value by 5%                 120.32                  -120.32                 116.07            -116.07 

  (iv) 

(Amount in Lakhs)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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Credit risk is the risk of loss that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The Company's exposure to credit risk arises primarily from security deposit and
other receivables which the Company minimises such risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consists of trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other
financial assets.

The Carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 5,915.53 lakhs and Rs. 4,314.23 lakhs as at March
2021 and March 2020 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, security deposits,trade receivables and other financial assets.
Trade receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the sanctioned credit limits, security like letters of credit, security deposit collected etc. and expectations
about future cash flows. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows.

The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks. Market risks comprise of currency risk and interest rate risk.
The Company's Senior Management and Key Managerial Personnel have the ultimate responsibility for managing these risks. The Company has a process to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and to control and to monitor risks and adherence to these limits. Risk Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's activities. Further, Audit Committee undertakes regular reviews of Risk Management Controls and Procedures.

Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company has trade receivables
and trade payables in foreign currencies and are therefore exposed to foreign exchanged risk. The company mitigates the foreign exchange risk by setting appropriate exposure limits,
periodic monitoring of the exposure and hedging exposure using derivatives financial instruments like foreign exchange forward contracts. The exchanged rates have been volatile in the
recent years and may continue to be volatile in the future. Hence, the operating results and financials of the company may be impacted due to volatility of the rupee against foreign
currencies.

As at March 31, 2020
Profit or loss Profit or loss

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rate and interest rates will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The company is not
exposed to interest rate risk as there are no borrowings. The Company is mainly exposed to change in market rates of its investments in mutual fund units which is recognised at FVTPL.
A sensitivity analysis demonstrating the impact of change in Net Asset Value (NAV) of these instruments from the prices existing as at the reporting date is given below

238.84                                               182.59                                       

Liquidity and interest risk tables:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it
will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.

The following table detail the company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

                                             1,705.82                                      2,648.23 



Exposure to currency risk
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March, 2021 and 31 March, 2020 are as below:

(Amount in Lakhs)
Currency 

Financial assets As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 31, 
2020

As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Trade and other receivables USD 13.00                  10.68                    955.20               806.40            
EURO 2.23                    4.71                      190.67               391.37            
AED -                      0.54                      0.09                   11.16              
GBP 0.10                    -                       9.91                   -                  
SGD 8.40                    0.32                      452.23               16.79              

                  23.73                     16.25              1,608.10           1,225.72 
Less: Hedged Exposures USD 0.46                    2.33                      33.98                 175.78            

EURO -                     0.42                      -                     35.23              
                    0.46                       2.75                   33.98              211.01 
                  23.27                     13.50              1,574.12           1,014.71 

(Amount in Lakhs)
Currency 

Financial liabilities As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 31, 
2020

As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Trade and other payables USD 6.21                    3.63                      456.01               273.74            
(includes foreign currency AED 0.69                    0.11                      13.77                 2.29                

SAR 2.24                    2.46                      45.77                 49.35              
SGD 8.91                    -                       479.82               -                  

                  18.05                       6.20                 995.37              325.38 

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.

(Rupees) 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
USD 73.47                  75.50                    
EUR 85.60                  83.17                    
GBP 100.31                93.29                    
AED 20.01                  20.57                    
SAR 20.43                  20.05                    
SGD 53.83                  52.40                    

Sensitivity analysis

Effect in Rs. Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
USD - 3% movement                  (13.96)                   13.96                    (10.71)                   10.71 
EUR - 3% movement                    (5.72)                     5.72                    (10.68)                   10.68 
GBP - 3% movement                    (0.30)                     0.30                           -                          -   

(e) Capital Management

Profit or loss Profit or loss

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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Amount in Foreign Currency Equivalent amount (Rupees)

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain an efficient capital structure and to maximise shareholder’s value. The company has no borrowings during 
the year.

Amount in Foreign Currency Equivalent amount (Rupees)

Year-end spot rate

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against foreign currencies as at 31st March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments
denominated in foreign currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts as shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020



29 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A. Financial Guarantees

B. Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt

C. Commitments
The Company has commitment of INR 1.50 lakhs in relation to Capital expenditure

30  Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS - 24, "Related Party Disclosures", are given below:
A. Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships:

(a) Holding Company:
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (holds 52.06% of the equity share capital of the company)

(b) Subsidiaries:
(i) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte Ltd.

(ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV.
(iii) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc.

(c) Fellow Subsidiaries & Sub Subsidiaries:
(i) Sheetak Inc.

(ii) Godrej (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
(iii) Godrej UEP (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (a subsidiary of (ii) above)
(iv) Godrej UEP Pvt. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (iii) above)
(v) JT Dragon Pte. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (ii) above)

(vi) Godrej (Vietnam) Co. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (v) above)
(vii) Veromatic International BV

(viii) Godrej Americas Inc

(d) Post-Employment Benefit Trusts where the holding company exercises significant influence
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

 (ii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund
(iii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

(e) Directors and Key Management Personnel
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia - Chairman & Non Executive Director

 (ii) Mr. P.E. Fouzdar - Non Executive Director
(iii) Mr. K.K. Dastur - Non Executive & Independent Director
(iv) Mr. S.N. Irani - Non Executive Director
(v) Mr. R.D. Contractor - Non Executive Director

(vi) Mr. Manu Parpia - Non Executive & Independent Director
(vii) Mr. A.G. Verma - Non Executive Director

(viii) Mrs. Nyrika Holkar - Non Executive Director
(ix) Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO) - Key Managerial Personnel

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Guarantees given by the Company’s Bankers against counter-guarantees given by the Company and guarantees given by the Holding Company INR 22.50 
lakhs (as at 31 March, 2020. INR 22.00 lakhs).

The Company was issued Internet Service Provider (ISP) license on 17th April 2001, which was further amended to ISP-Internet Telephony licence on 11th
October 2002. The intent of obtaining the license was to provide Internet services to customers – though the primary business was to provide services related
to Information Technology. The said license was with Godrej Infotech till 7th September 2015 when it was submitted for cancellation.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company had received demand letters from Department of Telecommunication (DoT) amounting to Rs. 12,115 lakhs
(including interest and penalty up to the date of respective letters) for year 2005-06 to 2013-14 (except 2007-08) by adding non-telecom revenue i.e., revenue
related to Sale of ERP and its Implementation and Support charges as “Miscellaneous income” in Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR). 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has received additional demand letters from DOT amounting to Rs. 4,278 lakhs (including interest and penalty
up to the date of respective letters) for the year 2007-08 and 2014-15. The total amount of demand received as per letters from DOT now stand at Rs. 16,393
lakhs (including interest and penalty up to the date of respective letters). 

The Company has contested the demands before DoT and requested for their withdrawal, as the same are not payable in terms of ISP license agreements and
accordingly not considered in accounts

In the light of judgement dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court on the dispute between DoT and Telecom Service Operators (TSPs) regarding
interpretation of AGR, DoT vide communication dated 05.12.2019 requested submission of a comprehensive representation since all the earlier demands are
being re-examined w.r.t. the Hon’ble Supreme Court Judgement. In the opinion of the management and based upon legal opinion received, the said judgement
dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court is not applicable to the Company as the nature of license in case of telecom service providers is different and
distinct from the licenses given to the Company.



B. The details of transactions with related parties during the year are given below:
(Amount in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Common Expenses Shared (Gross)
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg.Co.Ltd 284.85                          426.36                        

(b) Purchase of Materials
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 17.46                            38.50                          

(c) Purchase of Fixed Assets
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 6.73                              29.75                          

(d) Services Taken
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 29.40                            70.92                          

(ii) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte. Ltd 536.76                          -                              
(iii) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. 88.36                            -                              

(e) Sales & Services Rendered
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,764.73                       5,115.74                     

(ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV 893.43                          1,204.46                     
(iii) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte. Ltd 541.77                          339.76                        
(iv) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. 390.42                          128.02                        

(f) Dividend Paid
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 50.50                            60.88                          

(g) Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration: 
Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO). 109.01                          113.29                        

(h) Sitting Fees to Non-Executive Directors
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia 2.75                              2.50                            

 (ii) Manu Parpia 3.00                              2.75                            
(iii) K. K. Dastur 3.50                              2.50                            
(iv) S. N. Irani 1.50                              -                              

C. The details of outstanding with related parties as at year end are given below:
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) Guarantees Taken

(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 22.50                            22.00                          

(b) Trade and other Receivables
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 1,184.12                       1,210.31                     

 (ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV 278.23                          349.36                        
(iii) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte. Ltd 577.40                          120.57                        
(iv) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. 403.54                          123.90                        

D. Contribution to Post Employment Benefit Trusts, where the holding company exercises significant influence
(a) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

Contribution during the year 21.16                            353.77                        
(b) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund

Contribution during the year 81.45                            80.81                          
(c) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

Contribution during the year 294.60                          281.59                        

31 Segment Reporting
Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” requires an entity to disclose information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the
business activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it operates. The Company is managed as a single operating unit that provides IT
Products and Services, mainly ERP Consultancy and Software Services & Solutions and therefore, has only one reportable business segment. As per the requirements of
Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”, segment information has been provided under the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021



32 Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 696.28                         
(b) Sale of Services 11,629.82                    
(c) Other Operating Revenues 111.05                         

12,437.15                    

A. Contracts with customers

12,437.15                    

238.84                         

B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars
Revenue by operation At a point in time Over time Total
Product
Licenses 194.40                   -                                194.40                         
BREP 501.88                   -                                501.88                         

696.28                   -                                696.28                         

Services
Consultancy & Implementation Services -                         10,400.42                     10,400.42                    
Cloud Services 403.82                   -                                403.82                         
AMC Services -                         825.58                          825.58                         

403.82                   11,226.00                     11,629.82                    

Commission 111.05                   -                                111.05                         

111.05                   -                                111.05                         

Particulars
Revenue by geographical market At a point in time Over time Total

Domestic
Product 214.06                   -                                214.06                         
Services -                         6,990.01                       6,990.01                      
Commission 71.24                     -                                71.24                           
Cloud 128.54                   -                                128.54                         
Total 413.84                   6,990.01                       7,403.85                      

Export
Product 482.22                   -                                482.22                         
Services -                         4,235.99                       4,235.99                      
Commission 39.81                     -                                39.81                           
Cloud 275.28                   -                                275.28                         
Total 797.31                   4,235.99                       5,033.30                      
Total (A+B) 1,211.15                11,226.00                     12,437.15                    

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2020 based on the operation, geographical 
market and contract-type. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash 
flows are affected by industry, market and  other economic factors.

(Amount in Lakhs)

The Company has identified a single reportable segment namely "IT Product and Services" as disclosed in Note 1.(E) (o)- "Segment Reporting" to the
Financial Statements. There is a further disclosure of revenue generated by geographical market which is provided only as per the specific requirement of Ind
AS 108 for a single reportable segment. 

(Amount in Lakhs)

Contract Type

Contract Type

Disclosure of amount recognised as revenue from contracts with customers and impairment loss 
(Amount in Lakhs)

(a) revenue recognised from contracts with customers
(b) any impairment losses recognised (in accordance with Ind AS 109) on any receivables or contract assets arising from an entity’s 
contracts with customers

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Amount in Lakhs)



C. Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

Changes in contract asset are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 169.69                        
Revenue recognised during the year of the opening balance (169.69)                       
Revenue reversed during the year of the opening balance -                              
Revenue recognised during the year 11,372.59                   
Invoices raised during the year post Deferred Revenue 11,087.06                   
Balance at the end of the year 1,540.27                      

Changes in deferred revenue are as follows :
Balance at the beginning of the year 426.93                        
Revenue recognised that was included in the unearned and deferred revenue at the beginning of the year (426.93)                       
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 354.78                         

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

33 Previous years' figures have been regrouped / restated wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting
period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115,
the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with
the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining
performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including adjustments for currency.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The Company’s contracts with customers includes promise to transfer products / services to the customer. The Company assesses the products / services
promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to
determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price is the fixed amount charged to the customer. Any
consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. 

The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for each performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on the basis of standalone selling price of each product or service as mentioned in the contract. Where standalone selling
price is not available, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

The revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using Percentage-Of-Completion Method (POCM). The Company uses judgement to estimate the future
cost to complete the contracts which is used to determine the percentage of completion of the performance obligation.

(Amount in Lakhs)



 

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of GODREJ INFOTECH 
LIMITED (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
collectively referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated 
Financial Statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based 
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the 
subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the consolidated state of affairs (financial position) of the Group as at March 31, 2021, of 
consolidated profit, (financial performance including other comprehensive income), consolidated 
changes in equity  and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics 
issued by ICAI and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 30.B to the Consolidated Financial Statements, whereby in addition to the 
existing demand letter from the Department of Telecommunication (DoT) amounting to Rs. 12,115 
lakhs for the financial year 2005-06 to 2013-14 (except 207-08), during the year additional demand 
letters amounting to Rs. 4,278 Lakhs for the financial year 2007-08 and 2014-15 is received by the 
Holding Company. DoT has considered as “Miscellaneous income” the Non – Telecom Revenue of the 
Holding Company i.e. the revenue generated by the Holding Company from its mainstream businesses 
of implementation, consultancy and support services of ERP software including trading of software 
licenses as part of Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR).  The Holding Company has contested the demands 
before DoT and requested for their withdrawal, as in the opinion of the management the same are not 
payable in terms of its ISP License agreements.  
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 



 

Other Information  
 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, namely Director’s Report 
including annexures to Director’s Report, but does not include the Financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in term of 
the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 
the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of 
the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 
In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the Group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
  

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and subsidiary companies have adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  
 

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

(f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of 
such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been 
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  
 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of the users of the Financial Statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope 
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 



 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
  
Other Matters: 
 

1. We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries incorporated outside India included in the 
consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements reflect total asset of Rs. 2,578.13 lakhs as 
at March 31, 2021; total revenue of Rs. 2,867.79 lakhs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 351.16 lakhs 
for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far 
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 
  

2. These subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial results and other financial information have 
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries 
and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in 
their respective countries. The Holding Company's management has converted the financial results of 
such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective 
countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India (Indian Accounting Standards 'Ind AS'). 
We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company's management. Our 
conclusion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is 
based on the report of the other auditors and the conversion adjustments made by the Holding 
Company’s management and audited by us. Our report on the statement is not modified in respect of 
these matters. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the reports of the other auditors. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 
 

(c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 



 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company none of the directors 
of the Holding company incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

(f) As there are no subsidiaries incorporated in India, this report does not contain a separate report on the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements over financial reporting of the Group 
under Clause(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act. 
 

(g) According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration and hence, the provisions of 
Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.  
 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 
 
i. The Group does not have any pending litigations to be disclosed in its Consolidated Financial 

Statements except as referred in Note 30.B to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts during the year ended March 31, 2021, for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. Derivative contracts are appropriately dealt with in the 
books of account. 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Group during the year ended March 31, 2021. 

 
 
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration Number: 104607W/W100166 
 
 
 
 
 
FARHAD M. BHESANIA 
PARTNER 
Membership Number: 127355 
UDIN: 21127355AAAAEV9904 
Place: Mumbai        
Date: May 25, 2021 
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(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at As at 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 94.32                               89.08                           
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 1.00                                 22.04                           
(c) Goodwill 54.49                               54.49                           
(d) Financial Assets

Loans 3 13.20                               18.71                           
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 94.09                               121.35                         
(f) Income Tax Assets (Net) 5 703.73                             525.53                         
(g) Other Non - Current Assets 6 108.17                             108.38                         
Total Non-current Assets 1,069.00                          939.58                         

2. Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 7 2,406.47                          2,321.30                      
(ii) Trade Receivables 8 1,653.53                          2,583.80                      

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 4,143.06                          2,613.26                      
(iv) Loans 10 12.69                               17.63                           
(v) Others 11 1,452.60                          198.91                         

(b) Other Current Assets 12 403.32                             242.71                         
Total Current Assets 10,071.67                        7,977.61                      

TOTAL ASSETS 11,140.67                        8,917.19                      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 9.70                                 9.70                             
(b) Other Equity 14 6,113.31                          4,998.35                      
(c) Non-Controlling Interest 15 57.15                               40.53                           

TOTAL EQUITY 6,180.16                          5,048.58                      

LIABILITIES
1. Non Current Liabilities

Provisions 16 289.26                             232.21                         
Total Non Current Liabilities 289.26                             232.21                         

2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade Payables 17
18.29                               12.89                           

439.01                             240.36                         
(ii) Others 18 2,916.21                          2,255.85                      

(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 1,244.44                          1,083.33                      
(c) Provisions 20 51.02                               43.97                           
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 2.28                                 -                              
Total Current Liabilities 4,671.25                          3,636.40                      

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,140.67                        8,917.19                      

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
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(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

I INCOME
1. Revenue from Operations 22 12,695.05                     13,453.93                      
2. Other Income 23 89.35                            225.26                           

TOTAL INCOME 12,784.40                     13,679.19                      

II EXPENSES
1. Cost of Sales/ Services 24 969.95                          1,307.69                        
2. Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade -                                1.45                               
3. Employee Benefits Expense 25 8,879.29                       8,538.73                        
4. Finance Cost 26 -                                0.97                               
5. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2 22.64                            23.92                             
6. Other Expenses 27 1,445.40                       2,174.01                        

TOTAL EXPENSES 11,317.28                     12,046.77                      

III PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,467.12                       1,632.42                        

IV TAX EXPENSE
Current Tax 4(b) 370.00                          450.40                           
Deferred Tax 4(b) (7.03)                             (4.86)                              
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 362.97                          445.54                           

V PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,104.15                       1,186.88                        

VI OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 136.24                          (245.34)                          
2. Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss (34.29)                           (43.75)                            

Total (A) 101.95                          (289.09)                          
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations 22.48                            29.94                             
2. Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -                                8.73                               

Total (B) 22.48                            38.67                             

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A+B) 124.43                          (250.42)                          

1,228.58                       936.47                           

Profit for the Year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 1,088.52                       1,169.53                        
Non-Controlling Interests 15.63                            17.36                             
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 123.44                          (253.30)                          
Non-Controlling Interests 0.99                              2.88                               
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 1,211.96                       916.23                           
Non-Controlling Interests 16.62                            20.24                             

VII EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Basic & Diluted 28 11,383                          12,236                           

Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
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TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
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(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 1,467.12                         1,632.42                       
Adjustments for :
   Depreciation and amortisation expense 22.64                              23.92                            
   Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.55)                               (1.14)                             
   Bad Debts Written Off 0.46                                -                                
   Provision for Doubtful Debts 50.42                              19.18                            

Interest on Other financial assets carried at amortised cost (0.09)                               0.11                              
   Dividend Earned on Investments -                                  (39.99)                           
   Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds (17.33)                             (2.18)                             
   Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL (38.82)                             (58.36)                           
   Interest on Income Tax Refund (0.09)                               (28.81)                           
   Foreign Exchange Difference Loss/ (Gain) (Unrealised) 38.62                              (41.87)                           
   Foreign Currency Translation Effect 22.48                              29.94                            
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,543.86                         1,533.22                       
Adjustments for :
   Trade Receivables 840.77                            718.90                          
   Other Assets/ Receivables (1,403.55)                        336.37                          
  Trade payable and Other liabilities 1,228.05                         219.78                          
  Cash Generated from Operations 2,209.13                         2,808.27                       
  Direct Taxes Paid (Incl. Tax Deducted at Source) Net of Refund (548.12)                           (838.67)                         
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities 1,661.01                         1,969.60                       

B.  Cash Flow From Investing Activities
  Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (7.36)                               (36.24)                           
  Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 2.17                                1.14                              
  Dividend received -                                  39.99                            
Sale/(Purchase) of Mutual Funds (Net) (29.02)                             (934.90)                         
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (34.21)                             (930.01)                         

C.  Cash Flow From Financing Activities
  Dividend Paid (97.00)                             (99.82)                           
  Dividend Distribution Tax -                                  (17.12)                           
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (97.00)                             (116.94)                         

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,529.80                         922.65                          

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,613.26                         1,690.61                       
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,143.06                         2,613.26                       
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,529.80                         922.65                          

1,529.80                         922.65                          
Note:

The accompanying notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

FARHAD M. BHESANIA K.A. PALIA M.M. PARPIA AJAY PIMPARKAR
PARTNER Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership Number 127355 (DIN: 00281971) (DIN: 00118333)
Place: Mumbai
Date:  May 25, 2021

The above Statement of Cash Flow includes INR 33.29 lakhs (Previous Year 2020: INR 27.65 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 
(Refer Note 27).

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
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A. Group overview

B. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

a

b

c

d  Use of Estimates, Judgements & Assumptions

(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

e Impact of Covid-19 pendamic

f Code on Social Security, 2020

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

1   Significant Accounting Policies

Godrej Infotech Limited ('the Holding Company') including its subsidiaries collectively referred to as ("the Group") is a leading provider in consulting,
technology, outsourcing and next-generation services. Along with its subsidiaries, the Company provides Business IT services; Consulting and systems
integration & implementation, and support services; Products, business platforms and solutions to accelerate intellectual property-led innovation; and offerings
in the areas of Analytics, Cloud, and Digital Transformation.
The Holding Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 
- 400 079. 

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Group’s Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 comprises of the
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2021 are approved by the Board of Directors on May 25, 2021

Current versus non-current classification:
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalent, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current and
non-current.

Determination of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.
Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
Recognition of deferred tax assets.
Fair value of financial instruments.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee, which is the functional currency of the Holding Company. All financial information has been rounded
to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on accrual method of accounting, except
for certain financial assets and liabilities, including financial instruments which have been measured at fair value as described below and defined benefit plans
which have been measured on the basis of actuarial valuation as required by relevant Ind AS.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The Management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively. Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most
significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, are included in the following notes: 

Applicable discount rate.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited
suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject
rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to
determine the financial impact are published.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial statements,
including but not limited to liquidity and going concern assumption and carrying amount of financial and non-financial assets. In developing the assumptions,
relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic condition because of this pandemic, the Company has at the date of approval of these
financial statements, used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information and economic forecasts and expects that
the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from the estimates as at the
date of approval of the financial statement. 

Basis of Measurement



g Recent pronouncement

h Measurement of fair values

C Critical Accounting Estimates
a.  Revenue recognition

b.  Income taxes

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected
contract estimates at the reporting date.

The Group's major tax jurisdictions are in India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected
to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the financial instruments to be measured at fair values.

In March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments
revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 2021. The Company is evaluating the effect of the amendments on its financial
statements. 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The Group has an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information such as broker
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusions
that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.



D Significant Accounting Policies

a. Business Combination

b. Subsidiaries

c. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

d. Acquisition of non-controlling interests

e. Basis of Consolidation
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The Group accounts for each business combination (other than common control transactions) by applying the acquisition method. The acquisition date is the
date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred
from one party to another.

The Group measures goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred, including the recognised amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount (measured at fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities in case such a liability represents a present obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably)
assumed. When the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration transferred, a bargain purchase gain is
recognised as capital reserve on consolidation.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. The difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.

Subsidiaries are all entities that are controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has the ability to affect those returns through
power over the entity. In assessing control, potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are substantive. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in these consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. For the purpose of preparing these
consolidated financial statements, the accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Upon loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity
related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit & Loss. If the Group retains
any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost and the differential is recognised in Statement
of profit or loss. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted investee depending on the level of influence retained.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full while preparing
these consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains or losses arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.

Acquisition of some or all of the non-controlling interest (“NCI”) is accounted for as a transaction with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders.
Consequently, the difference arising between the fair value of the purchase consideration paid and the carrying value of the NCI is recognized as goodwill.
The associated cash flows are classified as financing activities.

The consolidated financial statements relate to Godrej Infotech Limited and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control over a subsidiary.

The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Intragroup balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are fully
eliminated while preparing these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Company except for LVD
Godrej Infotech NV whose reporting period is calendar year.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by adopting uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.



f. Property, Plant & Equipment
(i)

-
-

(ii) Depreciation

(iii)

g.

h Financial Instruments

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost net of tax credit availed less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

Recognition and Measurement

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that the assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of impairment loss (if any). 

If the recoverable amount of asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of an asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment prescribed under Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013 on pro rata basis. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on internal technical
evaluation. 

Leasehold land is amortised equally over the period of lease. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Disposal or Retirement
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised either on disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of occurrence.

Impairment of non-financial assets

its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced, the Group derecognises the replaced part and recognises the new part
with its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly.

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of property, plant and equipment less its estimated residual value. 



I. Financial Assets

(i)

(ii)

-
-
-

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) Derecognition

-
-

(viii) Impairment of financial assets

-
- Trade receivables

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial
recognition. 

Subsequent measurement and classification
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified into three categories: 
Financial assets at amortised cost

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

Financial asset at Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at Fair Value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets   

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment, if
any. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Group applies ‘Simplified Approach’ for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit exposure:
Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, deposits and bank balance

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

Financial assets as Equity Investments
All equity instruments other than investment in subsidiaries and associate are initially measured at fair value; the Group may, on initial recognition, irrevocably 
elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A fair value change on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Group has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity
instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s
balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.



II. Financial Liabilities

(i) Classification

(ii)

(iii) Loans and borrowings

(iv) Derecognition

III.

i Cash and cash equivalent

j
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

k Revenue recognition 

(i) Sale of software products / licenses

(ii) Sale of service – implementation (Fixed Price contracts)

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue from third party software implementation contracts which does not requires any significant customisation, which are generally time bound fixed price
contracts, is recognised over the life of the contract using the percentage-of-completion method, with the contract milestone determining the degree of
completion. 

Revenue in excess of billings i.e. the Group’s right to consideration in exchange of products or services that the Group has transferred to a customer is
recognised as contract asset in the balance sheet;

To the extent billings are in excess of revenue recognised i.e. there is obligation on the Group to transfer products or services to a customer, the excess is
reported as unearned i.e. contract liability in the balance sheet.

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or cost
expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent Assets if any, are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The Group derives revenues mainly from software development and related services and from trading of third party licenses. 

Revenue from the sale of third party software products / licenses which do not require any significant modification is recognised upon delivery i.e. “point in
time”, which is when the absolute right to use passes to the customer and the Group does not have any material remaining service obligations.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities



(iii) Sale of service – consultancy (Time & Material)

(iv) After sale service – consultancy (Time & Material)
Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the contract.

(v) Commission

(vi) Other income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

l  Employee Benefits
i.

ii. Post-employment benefits:
 Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

iii. Other long-term employee benefits

m Borrowing Cost

n Foreign currency transactions / translations

Short term employee benefits (payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service)
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The Group’s contributions paid/payable to
Managerial Superannuation Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, Employees’ Pension Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the
relevant approved schemes and/or statutes, and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders
the related service. There are no further obligations other than the  contributions payable to the approved trusts/appropriate authorities.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCI. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed
by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking
into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When (or as) the Group as an agent satisfies a performance obligation, the Group recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis is recognised as services are rendered and as related costs are incurred.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Gains or losses, resulting from the settlement (actual
realization /payment) of such transactions and from the translation of monetary current assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into
rupees at the year-end exchange rates, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items like fixed assets, inventories and investments in
equity shares, which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. The Group’s forward exchange contracts are not held for trading or speculation; the discount or premium arising from the difference between the
forward rate and the spot rate at the inception of such a contract is amortized as income or expense over the period of the contract. Any profit or loss arising
from such contracts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment

is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
However, the Rules of the Holding Company's Provident Fund (PF) administered by an approved Trust, require that if the Board of Trustees is unable to pay
interest at the rate declared for the Employees’ Provident Fund by the Government under para 60 of the Employees’ Provident Fund Scheme, 1952, for the
reason that the return  on investment is less or for any other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by the Group.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in
the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Other employee benefits include leave encashment/long-term compensated absences schemes.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective
interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the
qualifying asset are capitalized upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready to its intended use or sale.



o Leases  

(i)
(ii)

p

i.

(i) 
(ii) 

ii.

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii)

a.
b.

 
q Earnings Per Share

r Segment Reporting

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. Leases of assets (other than short term leases or leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value) are recognised if the lease contract conveys the right to the Group to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys the right to control the used of an identified asset for a period of time, if throughout the period of lease, the
Group has both of the following:

At the date of commencement of lease, the Group recognises a Right-Of-Use (“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee except for leases for a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For short term leases and low value leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend
or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will
be exercised.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date discounted using the the incremental borrowing rate. 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments or if
Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero

Income Tax

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED
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The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset. 
The right to direct the use of the identified asset. 

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss;
temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in OCI.
Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:
 has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax asset / liabilities in respect of on temporary differences which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period are not recognised. Deferred tax
assets / liabilities in respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period are recognised.
Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax losses and tax depreciation are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence of their realisation and on other items when there is reasonable certainty of realisation. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing
differences at the year-end based on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit Entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay
normal income tax during the specified period in which such credit can be carried forward for set-off. The carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement is
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after taxes attributable to equity shareholders for the year, with the weighted
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) which is a single
business segment in IT products and services. The CODM, being the Chief Executive Officer assesses the financial performance and position of the Company
and makes strategic decisions.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.
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As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

3 Loans
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 13.20                            18.71                            

13.20                            18.71                            

4 Deferred Tax Asset and Tax Expense
(a) Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

(i) Particulars
 As at               

March 31, 2021 
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI Net

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 3.66                    6.12                    -                               9.78                              
Employee Benefits 70.90                  (3.54)                  (34.29)                          33.07                            
Fair valuation of financial instruments -                     (9.71)                  -                               (9.71)                            
Other Items 46.79                  14.16                  -                               60.95                            
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 121.35                7.03                    (34.29)                          94.09                            

(ii) Particulars
 As at                 March 

31, 2020 
 Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

 Recognised
in OCI  Net 

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 
Property, Plant and Equipment 9.49                    (5.83)                  -                               3.66                              
Employee Benefits 103.84                10.81                  (43.75)                          70.90                            
Other Items 40.24                  (2.18)                  8.73                              46.79                            
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 153.57                2.80                    (35.02)                          121.35                          

(b) Tax expense recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current Tax
In respect of Current Year 411.56                          384.58                          
Prior period tax adjustments (41.56)                          65.82                            

370.00                          450.40                          
Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of Tax on Temporary differences (7.03)                            (4.86)                            

(7.03)                            (4.86)                            
Tax Expense for the year 362.97                          445.54                          

(c) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars

 Before Tax 
 Tax (Expense) 

Benefit  Net of Tax  Before Tax  Tax (Expense) Benefit  Net of Tax 
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit 
Liability/ (Asset) 136.24            (34.29)               101.95                (245.34)              (43.75)                          (289.09)                        
Exchange differences in translating the 
financial statements of foreign 
operations 22.48              -                    22.48                  29.94                  8.73                              38.67                            
Total 158.72            (34.29)               124.43                (215.40)              (35.02)                          (250.42)                        

(d) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit Before Tax 1,467.12                       1,632.42                       
Tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected Income Tax Expense 369.25                          410.85                          
Tax effect of:
Prior period tax adjustments (41.56)                          68.35                            
Allowable Deductions (1.58)                            -                               
Effect of tax provision at subsidiaries 61.24                            (72.71)                          
Difference in tax rate 4.36                              15.00                            
Property, Plant and Equipment (6.12)                            5.83                              
Employee Benefits 3.54                              (10.81)                          
Income Exempt from tax -                               (10.06)                          
Non-Deductible expenses 56.57                            (44.73)                          
Impact of Consolidation Adjustments (75.96)                          78.02                            
Provision for Doubtful Debts (4.45)                            3.03                              
Impact of Fair Value Adjustments (2.32)                            2.77                              
Tax expense recognised 362.97                          445.54                          

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(Amount in Lakhs)

 Net Balance     
as at            

March 31, 2020 

 Net Balance     
as at            

April 01, 2019 

 For the year ended March 31, 2021  For the year ended March 31, 2020 

(Amount in Lakhs)

Movement during the year

Movement during the year



As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

5 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net) 703.73                          525.53                          

703.73                          525.53                          

6 Other non - current assets
a) Prepaid Expenses - Non Current Asset 0.80                              1.01                              
b) Balance with Government Authorities 107.37                          107.37                          

108.17                          108.38                          

7 Investments
Unquoted, carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Investments in Mutual funds
(a) 2,45,406.266 units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund-Regular-Growth 808.15                          -                               
(b) 2,60,585 units of ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund-Reg-Growth 789.69                          -                               
(c) 16,180.936 units of Nippon India Liquid Fund - Growth 808.63                          -                               
(d) 30,757.363 units of Aditya Birla Overnight fund Reg-Growth -                               331.63                          
(e) 31,065.540 units of DSP Overnight Fund –Regular Plan-Growth -                               331.58                          
(f) 3,08,118.462 units of ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund-Reg-Growth -                               331.54                          
(g) 31,114.862 units of Kotak Overnight Fund-Regular-Growth -                               331.44                          
(h) 3,10,219.316 units of Nippon India Overnight Fund - Growth -                               332.09                          
(i) 10,284.944 units of SBI overnight Fund-Regular-Growth -                               331.64                          
(j) 12,216.758 units of UTI overnight Fund- Reg - Gr -                               331.38                          

2,406.47                       2,321.30                       
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments and Market Value thereof 2,406.47                       2,321.30                       
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments -                               -                               

8 Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Good (Refer Note 8.4) 1,653.53                       2,583.80                       
Unsecured, Credit Impaired 238.84                          188.22                          
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Receivables (238.84)                        (188.22)                        

1,653.53                       2,583.80                       

8.1

8.2

8.3
Balance as at Beginning of the Year 188.22                          168.21                          
Add: Created during the Year 99.10                            79.33                            
Less: Amount Realised during the Year 48.48                            59.32                            
Balance as at end of the Year 238.84                          188.22                          

8.4 Trade receivables includes receivables from related parties of Rs.1,184.12 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.1210.31 lakhs)

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a)  Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 4,142.97                       2,613.21                       
b)  Cash on Hand 0.09                              0.05                              

4,143.06                       2,613.26                       

10 Loans
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits - Current 12.69                            17.63                            

12.69                            17.63                            

11 Other Current Financial Assets
Contract Asset
Unbilled Revenue 1,452.60                       198.91                          

1,452.60                       198.91                          

12 Other Current Assets
(a) Prepaid Expenses - Current Asset 67.29                            83.47                            
(b) Advance Payment to Suppliers & Others 109.21                          83.88                            
(c) Balance with Government Authorities - Current 225.23                          57.69                            
(c) Others 1.59                              17.67                            

403.32                          242.71                          

(Amount in Lakhs)

No trade or other receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively, in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The Company has used practical expedient by computing expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables by taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss is based on ageing of the days the receivables are due and the expected credit loss
rate. The Company is still pursuing the recovery of the receivables for which allowance is made for doubtful debts.

The movement in allowance for doubtful receivables is as follows:

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021



As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

13 Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised:

1,000.00                  1,000.00                 

(b)  Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up :

9.70                         9.70                        
9.70                         9.70                        

(c) Reconciliation of number of Shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 9,700                 9.70                      9,700                       9.70                         
Add: Addition during the year -                     -                       -                           -                          
Outstanding at the end of the Year 9,700                 9.70                      9,700                       9.70                        

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

(e) Shareholding Information

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (Holding Company) 5,050                       5,050                      

(f) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company are given below :

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,050                 52.06% 5,050                       52.06%
RKN Enterprises 930                    9.59% 930                          9.59%

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

14 Other Equity
(a) Securities Premium

As per previous Balance Sheet 190.00                     190.00                    
190.00                     190.00                    

(b) General Reserve
Securities Premium - Opening Balance 2.22                         2.22                        

2.22                         2.22                        

(d) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 4,749.50                  3,986.01                 
Profit for the year 1,088.52                  1,169.52                 
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability/ (Assets) 101.95                     (289.09)                   
Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax (97.00)                      (116.94)                   
Closing Balance 5,842.97                  4,749.50                 

(c) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening Balance 56.63                       20.85                      
Additions during the year 21.49                       35.78                      

78.12                       56.63                      

6,113.31                  4,998.35                 

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020Name of the Shareholder

10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (Previous year 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 
100/- each) 

 9,700 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up (Previous year  9,700 Equity Shares of 
Rs. 100/- each, fully paid up)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

The Holding Company has only one class of shares having par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend if proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of Equity Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Holding Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

Equity Shares held by

(No. of Shares)



14.1 Nature and Purpose of Reserves
(a) Securities Premium

(b) Retained Earnings
Retained earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company till date, less dividend to the shareholders 

15 Non-Controlling Interests
15.1 The details of Non-Controlling Interests in Subsidiaries are provided below:

As at           
March 31, 2021

As at            
March 31, 2020

As at              March 
31, 2021

As at            March 
31, 2020

LVD Godrej Infotech NV 15.63                 17.36                   57.15                       40.53                      
(Country of Incorporation - Belgium)
(Share of Non- Controlling Interests - 10%)

15.63                 17.36                   57.15                       40.53                      

15.2 Movement of Non-Controlling Interests

As at              March 
31, 2021

As at            March 
31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 40.53                       20.29                      
Share of Profit / (Loss) for the year 15.63                       17.36                      
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences during the year 0.99                         2.88                        
Balance at the end of the year 57.15                       40.53                      

15.3 The summarised financial information of subsidiary with non-controlling interest are as follows:
The summarised financial information of subsidiary - LVD Godrej Infotech NV below represents amounts before intra group eliminations

As at              March 
31, 2021

As at            March 
31, 2020

Non-current assets -                           -                          
Current assets 824.61                     797.84                    
Non-current liabilities -                           -                          
Current liabilities 253.12                     392.51                    
Equity attributable to the owners 514.34                     364.80                    
Non-controlling interests 57.15                       40.53                      
Total income 1,273.95                  1,808.95                 

1,064.11                  1,559.90                 
Profit / (loss) for the year 156.29                     173.64                    
Profit / (loss) attributable to owners of the Company 140.66                     156.28                    
Profit / (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 15.63                       17.36                      

The securities premium account has been created to record the premium on issue of equity shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Total expenses

Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Profit / (Loss) allocated to Non-
Controlling Interests

Accumulated Non-Controlling Interests

Name



As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

16 Non Current Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Unavailed Leave - Non Current 289.26                         232.21                  
289.26                         232.21                  

17 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
Payables for Goods & Services

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 18.29                           12.89                    
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 439.01                         240.36                  

457.30                         253.25                  

18 Other Current Financial Liabilities
(a) Employee Benefit Payable 1,781.76                      1,566.43               
(b) Derivative Liability 0.24                             9.36                      
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 1,134.21                      680.06                  

(Other Financial liabilities include other payables and accrued expenses)
2,916.21                      2,255.85               

19 Other Current Liabilities
(a) Advance from customers 265.33                         192.47                  
(b) Income Received in Advance 459.05                         544.80                  
(c) Statutory Liabilities 520.06                         346.06                  

1,244.44                      1,083.33               

20 Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for Unavailed Leave - Current 51.02                           43.97                    
51.02                           43.97                    

21 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Provision for Tax

Provision for Tax (Net) 2.28                             -                        
2.28                             -                        
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(Amount in Lakhs)



For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

22 Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 743.38                        1,109.62                
(b) Sale of Services 11,828.30                   12,218.42              
(c) Other Operating Revenues:

Commission 123.37                        125.89                   
Total Revenue from Operations 12,695.05                   13,453.93              

23 Other Income
(a) Interest Income

(i) Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.09                            28.81                     
(ii) Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 0.61                            1.65                       

0.70                            30.46                     
(b) Other Non Operating Income

(i) Dividend earned on Investments in Mutual Funds -                              39.99                     
(ii) Gain on Sale of Investments in Mutual Funds 17.33                          2.18                       

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments classified as FVTPL 38.82                          58.36                     
(iv) Profit on sale of assets 1.55                            1.14                       
(v) Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions -                              83.68                     

(vi) (Loss) /Gain on derivative contracts (Refer Note 23.1) 9.12                            (14.35)                    
(vii) Miscellaneous Income 21.83                          23.80                     

88.65                          194.80                   
Total Other Income 89.35                          225.26                   

23.1 Note: (Loss)/Gain on derivative contract includes unrealised loss of Rs. 0.24 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 9.36 lakhs)

24 Cost of Sales/ Service
(a) Purchase of Product & Licenses 576.59                        1,107.86                
(b) Purchase of Services 393.36                        199.83                   

Total Cost of Sales/ Service 969.95                        1,307.69                

25 Employee Benefits Expense
(a) Salaries and Allowances 8,223.62                     7,946.48                
(b) Contribution to Provident and other  Funds 390.38                        373.93                   
(c) Contribution to Gratuity 157.40                        108.43                   
(d) Staff Welfare Expenses 107.89                        109.89                   

Total Employee Benefits Expense 8,879.29                     8,538.73                

25.1 Details of Employee Benefit Plan
(a) Defined Contribution Plan:

Amount contributed by the Holding Company to the Employees' Provident Fund
recognised as an expense and included under Employee Benefit Expense 294.60                        281.59                   

(b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity:
Contribution to Gratuity Fund

(i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year 1,309.56                     942.45                   
Interest Cost 75.43                          65.59                     
Current Service Cost 137.03                        91.18                     
Benefit Paid from the Fund (49.37)                         (58.57)                    
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions 31.32                          -                         
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (21.17)                         218.21                   
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (105.15)                       50.70                     
Liability at the end of the year 1,377.65                     1,309.56                

(ii) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Liability at the end of the year (1,377.65)                    (1,309.56)               
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,356.49                     955.79                   
Difference (21.16)                         (353.77)                  
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (21.16)                         (353.77)                  

(iii) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Service cost 137.03                        91.18                     
Interest cost 75.42                          65.60                     
Expected return on plan assets (55.05)                         (48.35)                    
Total Expense recognised in the  Statement of Profit and Loss 157.40                        108.43                   

(iv) Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (95.00)                         268.91                   
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (41.24)                         (23.57)                    
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period recognised in OCI (136.24)                       245.34                   
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on death or on separation/ termination in terms of the provisions of the 
Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Group’s policy whichever is beneficial to the employees.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.



(v)

Particulars
Discount Rate       
Salary escalation rate                                  
Attrition Rate                                              

Mortality Rate During Employment

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars
 Increase  Decrease   Increase  Decrease  

Discount Rate (1% movement)                   (65.87)                   73.38                          (61.98)                       68.83 
Salary escalation rate (1% movement)                     66.77                 (61.50)                           62.45                     (57.71)
Attrition Rate (1% movement)                   (29.57)                   32.80                          (28.10)                       31.09 

(vii) The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity were as follows:

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund For the year ended For the year ended
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the Reporting Date
1st Following Year                         173.46                     160.26 
2nd Following Year                         151.32                     157.76 
3rd Following Year                         196.99                     152.10 
4th Following Year                         224.83                     180.34 
5th Following Year                         140.98                     199.16 
Sum of Years 6 to 10                         501.00                     481.60 

(c) Other Long Term Employment Benefits

(i) Provisions in Balance Sheet:
Particulars
Short term 51.02                          43.97                      
Long Term 289.26                        232.21                    
Total Provisions in Balance Sheet 340.28                        276.18                    

(ii) Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Expenses 81.99                          90.13                     
Total Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 81.99                          90.13                     

6.06% 5.76%
15.00% 15.00%
17.00%

The Principal assumptions used in determining the present value of defined benefit obligation for the Group's plan are given below:

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 
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Sensitivity analysis is an analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true on different count. This only signifies the 
change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis. 

The leave encashment benefit is payable to all the eligible employees of the Group at the rate of daily salary as per current accumulation of leave days.
The Privilege leave encashment liability and amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss determined on actuarial valuation using basis projected unit credit 
method are as under:.

18.00%
 Indian Assured Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
 Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis on Defined Benefit Obligation for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021  is shown below:
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 

(Amount in Lakhs)



(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

26 Finance Cost
Interest on Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -                              0.97                            
Total Finance Costs -                              0.97                            

27 Other Expenses
(a) Establishment Expenses and Other Expenses 68.07                          260.31                        
(b) Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 140.58                        705.08                        
(c) Rent (Refer Note 27.1) 427.41                        320.74                        
(d) Legal & Professional Expenses 447.74                        484.43                        
(e) Software Expenses 3.67                            2.30                            
(f) Communication Expenses 25.38                          35.91                          
(g) Auditor's Remuneration 21.10                          21.77                          
(h) Provision for doubtful debts 50.42                          19.18                          
(i) Repairs & Maintenance - Others 8.68                            22.84                          
(j) Commission Expenses 140.85                        233.01                        
(k) Bank Charges 16.45                          19.57                          
(l) Insurance 7.68                            6.65                            

(m) Director's Sitting Fees 13.58                          10.59                          
(n) Corporate Social Responsibility 33.29                          27.65                          
(o) Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions 36.12                          -                              
(p) General Expenses 3.92                            3.98                            
(q) Bad Debts Written Off 0.46                            -                              
Total Other Expenses 1,445.40                     2,174.01                     

27.1    Rent

28 Earnings Per Share
(a) Profit after Taxes attributable to Equity Shareholders (Amount in lakhs) 1,104.15                      1,186.88                      
(b) Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each Issued and Outstanding:
   (i) At the end of the Year 9,700                          9,700                          
  (ii) Weighted Average number of Shares Outstanding during the Year 9,700                          9,700                          
(c) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (a/b) (Amount in Rs.) 11,383                        12,236                        
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Expense relating to short-term leases amounts to Rs. 115.87 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 169.59 lakhs) and leases of low value assets
amounts to Rs. A1311.38 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 151.15 lakhs). Commitment in relation to these contracts amounts to Rs. 97.24
lakhs (Previous year Rs. 181.49 lakhs)



29 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

(a) Accounting classification and fair values

(Amount in Lakhs)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Loans - Security Deposits -                     -                      13.20                  13.20                 -                 -                  -          -                   

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 2,406.47            -                      -                      2,406.47            2,406.47         -                  -          2,406.47          
Trade receivables -                     -                      1,653.53             1,653.53            -                 -                  -          -                   
Cash and cash equivalents -                     -                      4,143.06             4,143.06            -                 -                  -          -                   
Loans -                     -                      12.69                  12.69                 -                 -                  -          -                   
Others -                     -                      1,465.29             1,465.29            -                 -                  -          -                   

2,406.47            -                      7,287.77             9,694.24            2,406.47         -                  -          2,406.47          
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables -                     -                      457.30                457.30                                   -                       -               -   -                   
Derivative Liability 0.24                   -                      -                      0.24                                       -                    0.24             -   0.24                 
Other Current Financial Liabilities -                     -                      2,916.21             2,916.21            -                 -                  -          -                   

0.24                   -                      3,373.51             3,373.75            -                 0.24                -          0.24                 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets 

Non-current
Loans - Security Deposits -                     -                      18.71                  18.71                 -                 -                  -          -                   

Current
Investments (Mutual Fund) 2,321.30            -                      -                      2,321.30            2,321.30         -                  -          2,321.30          
Trade receivables -                     -                      2,583.80             2,583.80            -                 -                  -          -                   
Cash and cash equivalents -                     -                      2,613.26             2,613.26            -                 -                  -          -                   
Others -                     -                      216.55                216.55               -                 -                  -          -                   

2,321.30            -                      5,432.32             7,753.62            2,321.30         -                  -          2,321.30          
Financial liabilities 

Current
Trade Payables                        -                           -                    253.24 253.24               -                                     -               -   -                   
Derivative Liability                     9.36                         -                           -   9.36                   -                                  9.36             -   9.36                 
Other Current Financial Liabilities -                     -                      2,255.85             2,255.85            -                 -                  -          -                   

9.36                   -                      2,509.09             2,518.45            -                 9.36                -          9.36                 
 FVTPL - Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
 FVOCI - Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

(b) Fair value hierarchy    

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in an active markets. 

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(c) Measurement of Fair Value

   (i) 

  (ii) 

  (iii) 

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying amount Fair value

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (a) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives 
the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).
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The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying amount Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent in all the years. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of mutual funds. Net asset value represents the price at which the issuer
will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. 

The Management assesses that fair values of Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents, Loans, Trade Payables, Other current liabilities and Other financial liabilities (current),
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Group
does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.



(d) Risk Management Framework

   (i) Credit Risk

Exposure to credit risk:

Debtor's Ageing
Particulars
more than 6 months
others

  (ii) Liquidity Risk

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years and 

above
Total Carrying 

amount
As at March 31, 2021
Trade Payables 457.30               -                      -                      457.30               457.30            
Others 3,436.27            -                      -                      3,436.27            3,436.27         
As at March 31, 2020
Trade Payables 253.24               -                      -                      253.24               253.24            
Others 2,601.91            -                      -                      2,601.91            2,601.91         

  (iii) Market Risk

Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Change in Net Asset Value by 5%                  120.32                 -120.32                116.07            -116.07 

Credit risk is the risk of loss that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The Group's exposure to credit risk arises primarily from security deposit and other
receivables which the Group minimises such risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consists of trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial
assets.

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks. Market risks comprise of currency risk and interest rate risk. The
Group's Senior Management and Key Managerial Personnel have the ultimate responsibility for managing these risks. The Group has a process to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and to control and to monitor risks and adherence to these limits. Risk Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and Group's activities. Further, Audit Committee undertakes regular reviews of Risk Management Controls and Procedures.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

The Carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 7,287.77/- and Rs. 5,432.32/- as at March 2021 and
March 2020 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, security deposits,trade receivables and other financial assets.
Trade receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the sanctioned credit limits, security like letters of credit, security deposit collected etc. and expectations
about future cash flows. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows.

238.84                                             
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                                    2,583.80 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rate and interest rates will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The group is not exposed to interest rate
risk as there are no borrowings. The Group is mainly exposed to change in market rates of its investments in mutual fund units which is recognised at FVTPL. A sensitivity analysis
demonstrating the impact of change in Net Asset Value (NAV) of these instruments from the prices existing as at the reporting date is given below

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Profit or loss Profit or loss

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

Liquidity and interest risk tables:

The following table detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.
The Group monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.

188.22                                      
                                           1,653.53 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.



  (iv) 

Exposure to currency risk
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March, 2021 and 31 March, 2020 are as below:

(Amount in Lakhs)
Currency 

Financial assets As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 31, 
2020

As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Trade and other receivables USD 7.37                    7.67                                   541.84             578.71 
EURO 0.20                    0.34                                     17.41               28.59 
AED -                      0.54                                       0.09               11.16 
GBP 0.10                    -                                         9.91                     -   

                     7.67                      8.55                569.25             618.46 
Less: Hedged Exposures USD                      0.46                      2.33                  33.98             175.78 

EURO                         -                        0.42                        -                 35.23 
                     0.46                      2.75                  33.98             211.01 
                     7.21                      5.80                535.27             407.45 

(Amount in Lakhs)
Currency 

Financial liabilities As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 31, 
2020

As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 
31, 2020

Trade and other payables USD                      5.24 3.63                    385.32               273.74            
(includes foreign currency) AED                      0.69 0.11                    13.77                 2.29                

SAR                      2.24 2.46                    45.77                 49.35              
                     8.17                      6.20                444.86             325.38 

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.

(Rupees) 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
USD 1 75.50                     69.23                     
EUR1 83.17                     77.83                     
GBP1 93.29                     90.43                     
AED1 20.57                     18.83                     
SAR1 20.05                     19.23                     
SGD1 52.40                     51.13                     

Sensitivity analysis

Effect in Rs. Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
USD - 3% movement                   -3.68                      3.68                    -3.88                    3.88 
EUR - 3% movement                   -0.52                      0.52                      0.20                   -0.20 
GBP - 3% movement                   -0.30                      0.30                         -                          -   

(e) Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maintain an efficient capital structure and to maximise shareholder’s value. The Group has no borrowings during the year.

Currency Risk

Profit or loss Profit or loss

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign currency trade
receivables and is therefore exposed to foreign exchanged risk. The company mitigates the foreign exchange risk by setting appropriate exposure limits, periodic monitoring of the
exposure and hedging exposure using derivatives financial instruments like foreign exchange forward contracts. The exchanged rates have been volatile in the recent years and may
continue to be volatile in the future. Hence, the operating results and financials of the company may be impacted due to volatility of the rupee against foreign currencies.

Amount in Foreign Currency Equivalent amount (Rupees)

Year-end spot rate

Amount in Foreign Currency Equivalent amount (Rupees)
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A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against foreign currencies as at 31st March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments
denominated in foreign currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020



30 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

A. Financial Guarantees

B. Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt

C. Commitments
The Group has commitment of INR 1.50 lakhs in relation to Capital expenditure

31  Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS - 24, "Related Party Disclosures", are given below:
A. Names of Related Parties and Nature of Relationships:

(a) Holding Company:
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. (holds 52.06% of the equity share capital of the company)

(b) Fellow Subsidiaries & Sub Subsidiaries:
(i) Sheetak Inc.

(ii) Godrej (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
(iii) Godrej UEP (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (a subsidiary of (ii) above)
(iv) Godrej UEP Pvt. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (iii) above)
(v) JT Dragon Pte. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (ii) above)

(vi) Godrej (Vietnam) Co. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of (v) above)
(vii) Veromatic International BV

(viii) Godrej Americas Inc

(c) Post-Employment Benefit Trusts where the holding company exercises significant influence
(i) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

 (ii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund
(iii) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

(d) Directors and Key Management Personnel
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia - Chairman & Non Executive Director

 (ii) Mr. P.E. Fouzdar - Non Executive Director
(iii) Mr. K.K. Dastur - Non Executive & Independent Director
(iv) Mr. S.N. Irani - Non Executive Director
(v) Mr. R.D. Contractor - Non Executive Director

(vi) Mr. Manu Parpia - Non Executive & Independent Director
(vii) Mr. A.G. Verma - Non Executive Director

(viii) Mrs. Nyrika Holkar - Non Executive Director
(ix) Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO) - Key Managerial Personnel
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Guarantees given by the Holding Company’s Bankers against counter-guarantees given by the Holding Company and guarantees given by Parent of the
Holding Company Rs. 22.50 lakhs (as at 31 March, 2020. Rs. 22 lakhs).

The Holding Company was issued Internet Service Provider (ISP) license on 17th April 2001, which was further amended to ISP-Internet Telephony licence
on 11th October 2002. The intent of obtaining the license was to provide Internet services to customers – though the primary business was to provide
services related to Information Technology. The said license was with Godrej Infotech till 7th September 2015 when it was submitted for cancellation.

During the financial year 2019-20, the Holding Company had received demand letters from Department of Telecommunication (DoT) amounting to Rs.
12,115 lakhs (including interest and penalty up to the date of respective letters) for year 2005-06 to 2013-14 (except 2007-08) by adding non-telecom
revenue i.e., revenue related to Sale of ERP and its Implementation and Support charges as “Miscellaneous income” in Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR). 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Holding Company has received additional demand letters from DOT amounting to Rs. 4,278 lakhs (including interest
and penalty up to the date of respective letters) for the year 2007-08 and 2014-15. The total amount of demand received as per letters from DOT now stand
at Rs. 16,393 lakhs (including interest and penalty up to the date of respective letters). 

The Holding Company has contested the demands before DoT and requested for their withdrawal, as the same are not payable in terms of ISP license
agreements and accordingly not considered in accounts

In the light of judgement dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court on the dispute between DoT and Telecom Service Operators (TSPs) regarding
interpretation of AGR, DoT vide communication dated 05.12.2019 requested submission of a comprehensive representation since all the earlier demands
are being re-examined w.r.t. the Hon’ble Supreme Court Judgement. In the opinion of the management and based upon legal opinion received, the said
judgement dated 24.10.2019 of Hon’ble Supreme Court is not applicable to the Holding Company as the nature of license in case of telecom service
providers is different and distinct from the licenses given to the Holding Company.



B. The details of transactions with related parties during the year are given below:
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) Common Expenses Shared (Gross)

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd 284.85                         426.36                        

(b) Purchase of Materials
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 17.46                           38.50                          

(c) Purchase of Fixed Assets
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 6.73                             29.75                          

(d) Services Taken
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 29.40                           70.92                          

(e) Sales & Services Rendered
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 5,764.73                      5,115.74                     

(f) Dividend Paid
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 50.50                           60.88                          

(g) Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration: 
Mr. Ajay. R. Pimparkar (CEO). 109.01                         113.29                        

(h) Sitting Fees to Non-Executive Directors
(i) Dr. K. A. Palia 2.75                             2.50                            

 (ii) Manu Parpia 3.00                             2.75                            
(iii) K. K. Dastur 3.50                             2.50                            
(iv) S. N. Irani 1.50                             -                              

(i)

C. The details of outstanding with related parties as at year end are given below:
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) Guarantees Taken

Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 22.50                           22.00                          

(b) Trade and other Receivables
Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. 1,184.12                      1,210.31                     

D. Contribution to Post Employment Benefit Trusts, where the holding company exercises significant influence
(a) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Gratuity Fund

Contribution during the year 21.16                            353.77                        
(b) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Managerial Superannuation Fund

Contribution during the year 81.45                            80.81                          
(c) Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd. Employee's Provident Fund

Contribution during the year 294.60                          281.59                        

32 Segment Reporting
(a)

(b) Information about products and services

(c) Information about geographical areas
 

The revenue from India is Rs. 12,437.15 lakhs (2019-20: Rs. 12,290.02 lakhs) and from outside India is Rs. 2,867.80 lakhs (2019-20: Rs. 1,163.90). Non-
current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets from India are Rs. 900 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 733.45 lakhs) and from outside
India are Rs. 60.16 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 66.07 lakhs).

The Group is managed as a single operating unit that provides IT Products and Services, mainly ERP Consultancy and Software Services & Solutions and
therefore, has only one reportable business segment.

General Information

 Factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisation

The Group has revenues from external customers to the extent of Rs. 12,695.05 lakhs (2019-20: Rs. 13,453.93 lakhs)

The geographic information analyses the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by the Group’s country of domicile and other countries. In presenting the
geographical information, revenue in the disclosure below is based on the location of the product and service. Assets in the disclosure are based on the
geographic location of the respective non current assets.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Inter company deposit from a company in which a director of the company is able to exercised significant influence taken and repaid - Nil (P.Y: Nil)

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Amount in Lakhs)



33 Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from Operations
(a) Sale of Products 743.38                        
(b) Sale of Services 11,828.30                   
(c) Other Operating Revenues 123.37                        

12,695.05                   

A. Contracts with customers

(a) revenue recognised from contracts with customers 12,695.05                   

238.84                        

B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars
Revenue by operation At a point in time Over time Total
Product
Licenses 194.40                            -                           194.40                        
BREP 548.98                            -                           548.98                        

743.38                            -                           743.38                        

Services
Consultancy & Implementation Services -                                  10,290.12                 10,290.12                   
Cloud Services 489.57                            -                           489.57                        
AMC Services -                                  1,048.61                   1,048.61                     

489.57                            11,338.73                 11,828.30                   

Commission 123.37                            -                           123.37                        
123.37                            -                           123.37                        

Particulars
Revenue by geographical market At a point in time Over time Total

Domestic
Product 214.06                            -                           214.06                        
Services -                                  7,033.80                   7,033.80                     
Commission 83.56                              -                           83.56                          
Cloud 169.43                            -                           169.43                        
Total 467.05                            7,033.80                   7,500.85                     

Export
Product 529.32                            -                           529.32                        
Services -                                  4,304.93                   4,304.93                     
Commission 39.81                              -                           39.81                          
Cloud 320.14                            -                           320.14                        
Total 889.27                            4,304.93                   5,194.20                     
Total (A+B) 1,356.32                         11,338.73                 12,695.05                   

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Amount in Lakhs)

Disclosure of amount recognised as revenue from contracts with customers and impairment loss recognised in accordance with Ind AS 
109 is as under:

(Amount in Lakhs)

The Group has identified a single reportable segment namely "IT Product and Services" as disclosed in Note 1.(E) (n)- "Segment Reporting" to
the Financial Statements. There is a further disclosure of revenue generated by geographical market which is provided only as per the specific
requirement of Ind AS 108 for a single reportable segment. 

(Amount in Lakhs)

(b) any impairment losses recognised (in accordance with Ind AS 109) on any receivables or contract assets arising from 
an entity’s contracts with customers

Contract Type

Contract Type

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on the operation, 
geographical market and contract-type. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depict shows the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows that are affected by industry, market and  other economic factors.



C. Information about major customers

D. Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

Changes in contract asset are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 198.91                       
Revenue recognised during the year of the opening balance (198.91)                      
Revenue reversed during the year of the opening balance -                             
Revenue recognised during the year 11,482.41                  
Invoices raised during the year post Deferred Revenue 11,420.53                  
Balance at the end of the year 1,452.60                    

Changes in deferred revenue are as follows :
Balance at the beginning of the year 544.80                       
Revenue recognised that was included in the unearned and deferred revenue at the beginning of the year (544.80)                      
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 459.05                       

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

34 Group Information

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Direct Subsidiaries
(i) Godrej Infotech (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Singapore 100% 100%

 (ii) LVD Godrej Infotech NV. Belgium 90% 90%
(iii) Godrej Infotech Americas, Inc. United States of America 100% 100%

Sr. 
No.

% of ownership interest either directly or 
indirectly through SubsidiariesCountry of 

IncorporationName of the Entity

The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for each performance obligation. The Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of standalone selling price of each product or service as mentioned in the contract.
Where standalone selling price is not available, the Group uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each
distinct performance obligation.

The revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using Percentage-Of-Completion Method (POCM). The Group uses judgement to estimate the
future cost to complete the contracts which is used to determine the percentage of completion of the performance obligation.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the
reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as
given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue
recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts where
invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors,
including adjustments for currency.

The Group’s contracts with customers includes promise to transfer products / services to the customer. The Group assesses the products /
services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price is the fixed amount charged to the customer.
Any consideration payable to the Group is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the
customer. 

The following entities have been consolidated in the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

GODREJ INFOTECH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

The Group does not have revenue from transactions with a single external customer of 10 per cent or more of an entity’s revenues for the year
ended March 31, 2021.
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